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This form is for use in nominating or requesting determinations of eligibility for individual properties or districts. See instructions in Guidelines
for Completing National Register Forms (National Register Bulletin 16). Complete each item by marking “x"" in the appropriate box or by entering
the requested information. If an item does not apply to the property being documented, enter “N/A" for “‘not applicable." For functions, styles, materials,
and areas of significance, enter only the categories and subcategories listed in the instructions. For additional space use continuation sheets

(Form 10-900a). Type all entries.

1. Name of Property
historic name

other names/site number Brandtown Gin Historic District
2. Location
street & number State Highway 47 at Brandtown N/A L _Inot for publication
city, town Prairie (nearest post office) 1] vicinity
state Mjgsissippi code MS county Clay code 2% zip code 79756
3. Classification
Ownership of Property Category of Property Number of Resources within Property
m private O building(s) Contributing Noncontributing
[ ] public-tocal district 10 6 buildings
[:] public-State D site sites
[] public-Federal [ structure structures

[ object objects

- 10 6 Total

Name of related multiple property listing: Number of contributing resources previously
Llay County Multiple Resource Area— . listed in the National Register __ (0

s

4. State/Federal Agency Certification

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act oi 1906, as amended, | hereby certify that this
(X nomination ] request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for registering properties in the
National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60.
In my opinion, the property @meets oes _not meel the National Register criteria. DSee continuation sheet.

Signature of certifying official Date

Deputy State Historic Preservation Officer
State or Federal agency and bureau

In my opinion, the property D meets [:]does not meet the National Register criteria. D See continuation sheet.

Signature of commenting or other official Date

State or Federal agency and bureau

5. National Park Service Certification
I, hereby, certify that this property is:
Dentered in the National Register.
D See continuation sheet.
Ddetermined eligible for the National
Register. [ See continuation sheet.
Ddetermined not eligible for the
National Register.

Dremoved from the National Register.
[:] other, (explain:)

Signature of the Keeper Date of Action




6. Function or Use

Historic Functions (enter categories from instructions) Current Functions (enter categories from instructions)
Domestic: single dwelling Domestic: single dwelling

_Commerce/Trade: department store Commerce/Trade: department store
Industry/Processing: manufacturing facility Vacant/Not in use

7. Description

Architectural Classification Materials (enter categories from instructions)

(enter categories from instructions)

foundation __brick

Other: Industrial walls weatherboard
Other: Victorian Vernacular brick
Other: Shotgun roof asphalt

other metal roofing

Describe present and historic physical appearance.

The Brandtown Gin District stretches along two roads, busy north-south Highway
47 and quiet, east-west John Brand Road. (See photo #9.) District buildings are
scattered in an "L" shape along the two roads. Arbitrary boundaries have been
established to encompass the L. They are drawn to include as many contributing

buildings as possible and exclude those which do not contribute. The boundaries are
illustrated on a district map.

There is no sharp distinction between the district and its rural surroundings,
but the related buildings are the best representatives in Clay County of an
early-20th century, agricultural/industrial-based economy and farming system. Land
in the district is fairly flat, with large trees throughout. Most of the buildings
are residential -- the houses of those associated‘with the commissary and gin that
were the economic and social centers —- and most are well set back from the roads
and separated by open areas. The gins and the conmissary are jovcabed cluser Lo the:
road and near the intersection of John Brand Road and Highway #47. All of these
buildings are strictly utilitarian in style. (See photos %6,7,8,9.)

The majority of buildings in the district have vernacular forms common to rural
communities at the end of the 19th and beginning of the 20th century. (See photos #
1-5, 12.) The only architecturally "styled" buildings are the John A. Brand house,
c. 1880, a former Victorian vernacular that has been remodeled with bungalow
features, and the J.T. Brand house, built in the Craftsman style in the second
decade of the 20th century. (See photo # 13.) Vernacular or folk styles found in
the houses of the Brand family or their tenant workers include open dog trots, an
extended log cabin, .a shotgun, a saddlebag, and some massed cabins.

The oldest house in the district is the Brand house. (See photos #16, 17.) It
appears to be a mid-to-late 19th century house with 20th century embellishments. A
c. 1915 barn, still reasonably solid and intact, survives to the southeast of the
Brand house. (See photo #18.) Several of the tenant houses may date from the late
19th or early 20th centuries, but family members do not have records of building
construction. A 20th century set of tenant houses (see photos # 14,15,) and the two
modern homes built in the 1970s and 1980s (see photos # 10,11,) are the latest
additions to the district. According to the rating system for properties in

historic districts, 81 percent qualify as Contributing, 19 percent as
Non-contributing.

The buildings in the Brandtown Gin District are listed and numbered in order of
location beginning at the west side, on John Brand Road, and continuing east to
Highway 47 and north to the John A. Brand House. They are evaluated individually.

See continuation sheet



8. Statement of Significance

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
[Inationally  [_]statewide E Jiocally

Applicable National Register Criteria [xJA [ 8 [Jc [Jo
Criteria Considerations (Exceptions) [ JA []8 [Jc [Jo [Je [Jr [la

Areas of Significance (enter categories from instructions) Period of Significance Significant Dates
Commerce 1905-1940 N/A

Cultural Affiliation

N/A
Significant Person Architect/Builder
N/A Unknown

- State significance of property, and justify criteria, criteria considerations, and areas and periods of significance noted above.

Brandtown is significant as a rare surviving Clay County example of a cotton
gin village exemplifying the early 20th century cotton-fueled
agricultural/industrial life of rural Mississippi. The vears between 1905 and 1940

were those in which the surviving community took shape. The "new” gin and
commissary built in 190:) were the focus of activity for the people living in nearby
houses., New hom vere added and the commmity staved activly engaged in growing
and ginning coltton up until the Second world war, ¢. 19490. '

Brandtown is an example of the the tvpe of commmity which was the rural

~ PR 'y 349

industrialists. Bought or built, and then owned and operated by one family during
the course of more than 100 years, the Brand holdings expanded plot by plot after
the Civil war to become the gin community. Its founder, J.A. Brand, enlisted for
Confederate duty from Chickasaw County and returned to farm after the war. He

operated a horse gin, which was superceded by a steam gin run by his sons John and
Jim. That gin burned in 1895. The Brands set up J.T. Brand & Company in 1905 and
built the commissary and gin that survive for nomination to the National Register.

J.A. Brand’'s house and the houses of some of his children and many of the
tenant workers who made his cotton crops in the yvears between the Civil War and the
Second World War testify to a rural dependence on this single crop. As late as
1941, there were about 40 families dependent on the cotton, the gin, and the
commissary that were the local economy.

Cotton was superceded by other crops after World War II, and the families of
the owners and the workers moved on to other crops, other towns, other jobs. The
buildings nominated describe the particular kind of Southern agricultural life that
has disappeared with the cotton market.

DSoe continuation sheet
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Verbal Boundary Description

The boundaries for the Brandtown Gin Historic District include the land are
arbitrary lines drawn in a trapezoidal figure to include properties along John Brand
Road and Highway 47. The attached district map and the U.S.G.S. map included with the
Multiple Resource Area nomination show the locations of these arbitrary lines. The lines
are drawn to within 25 feet of the westernmost, southernmost, and northernmost properties.
Eastern and western lines are drawn to include relevant resources but exclude others.



9. Major Bibliographical References

See Historic Context bibliography.

[x]see continuation sheet
Previous documentation on file (NPS): ;

Dpreliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) Primary location of additional data:
has been requested [x ] state historic preservation office
[:Ipreviously listed in the National Register [_—_]Other State agency
D previously determined eligible by the National Register [ IFederal agency
Ddesignated a National Historic Landmark [:] Local government
Dreoorded by Historic American Buildings =] University
Survey # [Jother
[:]recorded by Historic American Engineering Specify repository:
Record # : Miss., Depnt. of Archives § Hi story

10. Geographical Data
Acreage of property _____Approximately 122 _acres

UTM References

Al1,6] 1312.818:0,0) !3,7]4,1(9,4,0] B lugl Lal2uglaisiol [27laiilo ool
Zlone Easting Northing Zone  Easting Northing
cl. ) 13]12,8]1,0,0] 13,714,019,4,0] D6l WBlaglaieo 3ndadaad

[:] See continuation sheet

Verbal Boundary Description

See continuation sheet.

D See continuation sheet

Boundary Justification

) The boundaries include the important commercial and residential properties
which best embody Brandtown's identity as an early 20th century 'company town."

DSee continuation sheet

11. Form Prepared By

namettitie Joan Embree

organization Preservation Consultant date _8/1/89

street & number 20 Lake Valley Road telephone __(601) 324-0410

city or town Starkville state MS zip code _39759

Owners: Christine Brand § Mildred Brand Walley, Box 185, Rt. 1, Prairie MS 39756
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HISTORIC DISTRICT PROPERTY LIST AND RATINGS

The buildings in the Brandtown Gin Historic District are listed and numbered in
order of survey. They are evaluated individually as either Contributing or
Non-contributing to the district.

C Contributing buildings promote the district’s historic identity
through their architecture and associations, adding to its "sense
of place." Contributing buildings are representatives of the
age, the styles and materials used during the district’s peak
growth and development era.

N Non-contributing buildings are those which are, by age, style, or
materials, not compatible with district resources, or which,
though compatible, were built outside the period of significance.
This designation includes both buildings that are similar in
csrale and materials but are not 50 vears old, and lLiildings which
are dissimilar and intrude on district identity. 1

prandltown Gin Historie Instricot

1. C Westernmost cabin on south side of John Brand Road: one story log
cabin with side gabled roof, frame additions to east, shed addition
on rear. Built c. 1890, original section has brick chimney with
corbelled top, quarter turn stairs to sleeping area/attic. Additions
are mid 20th century. Interior surfaces are paneling and wallboard.

2. C Second house to east on south side of John Brand Road: one story,
frame massed dog trot with central opening partially infilled at
rear. Interior has beadboard walls, simple moldings. Porch has
been removed on north. Built c. 1900.

3. C Third house to east on south side of John Brand Road: one story,
frame, shotgun style house with extended shed over front porch.

Board and batten siding, plank single-leafed entry, plain surrounds.
Built c. 1915.

4. C Fourth house to east on south side of John Brand Road: one story,
frame, saddlebag cabin has failed shed roofed front porch, two
bay facade (plank doors). Gable roofed addition from mid 20th
century deteriorating at rear. Built c. 1920. Interior not visible.

5. C Second house to east on north side of John Brand Road: one story,
frame, dog trot house with rear ell to northwest. Passage is still
open. Exterior partially covered by roll siding. Flue replaces
end chimney at west. Interior not visible. Built c. 1900.
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Historic District Listing, continued

6. C Brand Store, northwest corner John Brand Road and State Highway 47:
one story, rectangularly massed, frame commercial building with
gable front configuration and shed roofed porch. Built c¢. 1905 as
the company commissary for the Brand Cotton Gin community, it has
been moved across the road from in front of the old gin. The
interior still has original flooring, walls, some old fixtures.

.+ Straight run stairs at the rear lead to a loft storage area.
Building is pivotal in importance to district.

7j C Brand Cotton Gin, northeast corner Brand-Una Road and Highway 47;
0ld gin has two story wooden frame, corrugated metal exterior.
Much of old equipment remains, as does dirt floor. Shed addition
on north side now used for vehicle storage, repair. Built c. 1905.
Building is pivotal in importance to district.

Oy N Brand Cotton Uin (New): concrete fioor and metal exterior on
updated gin (built c. 1943). Several one story shed extensions have
been made to two and a half story building. Machinery intact. Gin
Gquit operating c. 1%7... ~Non-contributing by age

9% N First house north of Brand Store on west side of Highway 47: late

20th century one story frame, post-ranch-house rectangular box.
Non-contributing by age. Built c. 1980.

10. N First house north of Brand Gins on east side of Highway 47: late
20th century brick veneered one story ranch style house with
Classical Revival details, on slab foundation, with attached carport.
Non-contributing by age. Built c. 1970.

11. C Second house north of Brand Store on west side of highway: one story
frame house with three bay facade in plain Victorian Vernacular
style. Weatherboarded exterior now covered by roll siding, porch
missing. Rear ell at southwest corner. Brand family house. Built
c. 1890.

12. C Third house north of Brand Store on west side of highway: one and a
half story, Craftsman style frame house with side gabled roof,
integral front porch, covered with vinyl siding. Built about 1920
by present owner’s father. Marginally contributing element because
of synthetic siding.




NP8 Form 10-600-a OME Approvel No. 1024-0018

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service

National Register of Historic Places
Continuation Sheet

Brandtown Gin Historic District, Clay County, Mississippi

Section number _7 __ Page _ 3

Historic District Listing, continued

13. C Fourth house north of Brand Store on west side of highway: one story
' frame, rectangularly massed tenant house with shed roofed porch.
Original four room cabin has been extended to south, covered on
exterior with shingles. End chimneyv on north. Interior has flush
board walls, paneling. Built c. 1920.

14. C Fifth house north of Brand Store on west side of highway: one story,
massed, frame cabin partially covered with composition siding. With
#13, one of the early 20th century worker’s houses associated with
Brand Gin’s operation.

15. C Second house north of Brand Gin on east side of Highway 47: one story
frame, hipped roof house in the Victorian Vernacular style. Replace-
ment porch details are Classical Revival, but interior plan and
nnx.‘,.‘.;.p_' are similalr bo Green Revise:: Thatles Jordan House al Tibbee,
Nineteenth century photograph shows house with cutwork decorutive
dethail. Interior has flush bbard walls, simple board mantels,
toncue-and-groove floors, wide hall. A kitchen ell was added at
norihieast and the recar porch has been cnclosed. . Vinyl siding covers
original weatherboarding. This house built by John A. Brand,
community founder.

16. C Barn on west side of Highway 47, associated with Brand house: built
c. 1915, the wide, gable front, two story barn retains most of its
original materials. Barn may date from same era as classical
updating of main Brand house. Family has no written records.




SL T B P ¢ T T e e W e L v

ol ||
. K
4 @ =

N p) |

|

|

\\.\‘ [\ _

\ DH C/nv_

K : |

J
9 - |
X =
| [P
=39 |
L, =
,l// _
2 m B < 1
S 5 L o
> 4 Q } //I c«..._
S il TR
Q W /:_
5
> ¢ SR




"&@\\ -

O\“

J
< [4
; )
)
\
TIRNSN. /
- NS
Ll \
/ .
.
V' oo |7
/
.
3 <
- N

,//
She,

) ‘ - 1z 1
/ s
i Proyidence Ch

o

N~
em

-
47

.
nll» .
R |
\ 7
- /
N 4
_/.
L\ . g
N e o
/

]

ASAW CO [

-
©
0\
‘ :
B oy
\ &
rd
(













beabrown G @ g vy, Elepmerss #

6 A/uonwr\{7 Cbﬁ] é?/'v?y M
Mfy fa%9
Mss. Pepr o€ 14,35‘741@5 4 #‘sfm\/
fonat  ELEVETION 1EW 1) Sourst

(;uefo/ﬁﬁ oF |






Besmbomuny (N Disrict | House ¥ 2

B ravpTown | 0144}/ (\OWH’7 - Ms
EMeREE

M, 19 89

g@% %ﬁr %/l@@m«s 4 %ﬂg
oN, ) =

froct glege) Vllagw/fo SIutERsT






W Gint DrsmicT, HoUse ™ 1

Lt prlo T
2 epnloro, Ceay Comry M5

EMBREE
, 196A )
Msse Depl of Qecuives ¥ #rgmgy

Feont &\WesTERN ELEVATIONG VIEWTD SonTHERST
oo ¥ 4 0F 1@



R B

hanmieme







MND 7= RAINBOW

) e
iﬁ‘sn!_“hai.o“w,

D

] '“L i










PEaNuTIWN O Dgrneer . ELEME

NT5E 7
Bearptewn),  Cuay (o : }
EMBEEE 7 oy, 1o
Muy, 959
Miss. Deer oF
FRONT ELEVATICH sfzpé’,’;”fi é;émy
PHoOH 7 oF 18 “ g



\ I =
SRR

{




SQ/MMUWN G Dot , BETTE
Beane M Cua Cwm7< Mo

PMBLEE

MY, 1287

wiss. PEPT Jechine $ theror]
l/::w 50 €457

Feon™ clevn !,
oF 18






BLANpT 0N Cred Disreier
Beogonn, Coat Goonty, NS
cMpeee

My 1755 )

Pliss  DEDT  oF Apeiives 5 Hsrenx
ViEw oF DIsTRsT Fron) SOUTHEMST
Photo # 7 oF /8






bl orown Gy Dsieis, ELenens# 7

Buwmwu Chy Mg
e
MfsS'ﬂm’ OF Apuwe £ s
FrenT ELabTion), VIEW-TY L
Prom ¥ Lo or 18



-

-









EL& e v’

A MWW'\’ Gy DS,
beanom,) any Courty « 173
EMBEE
MAY. veA |
Mise, Deet. OF ARCHIVES =7 #/swr&)l
M g\/w‘ifﬂa\* S V1 EW 70 WEST



_—
g










Bean prowy (G Uszeler | ELEMenT # /3
AT /
- oW Cbﬁ'y Cwmry, Ms
MAY, /25
M5 pfpf ; apfécfhges $
2/ U=
K55 Ll St el e









Begrwroney Gy Dismr, Elemeny # 11
Bealpomws Cry oy ’

erpene Y M
Ay, (997

Miss Deer o= AecHiis ;’/%sme),

Pow# (5~ oF |3 s



._____.




\Jo Ig 4 3 /

) BeanD HOKE LEmenT

: )S BRanNDTO

bM’bQ{%WN‘ CLFEY zl M< ’ -

W oe
oe ARG
Coonr  ELEVATIN, jj‘:ﬁ,é eﬁgaz}/

oot o OF (8






BeanbwpnN Gin) Drswits ELEMEN # 15
Beanicoon Qay Counyry, Ms

EMEPEE

MAY 987 ,

Miss Deer. OF Aot 3 Hsmey

PEPR ELEWTID | UBAT? NpeTh\wlesT
o # 7 gF )8






Brernprron) G Dsmeict Eleppensy + #
Aean 7ol CLwy Cunpy MS
eMBee= 7 g

o, 685

Mz . DEFT 2F AROH IVSE HisToey

ekt EVson, Wiswry Bisr
B+ (8 of (8



	~OT900.PDF.pdf
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_066
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_067
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_068
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_069
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_070
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_071
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_072
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_073
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_074
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_075
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_076
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_077
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_078
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_079
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_080
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_081
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_082
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_083
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_084
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_085
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_086
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_087
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_088
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_089
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_090
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_091
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_092
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_093
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_094
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_095
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_096
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_097
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_098
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_099
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_100
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_101
	Brandtown Gin Historic District_102

